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FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Fort Scott, Kansas

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Overview of the Financial Statements and Financial Amalysis - This report consists of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows. This discussion provides an
overview of the College’s financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2014. The discussion provides
current year data with comparable data from the previous fiscal year in accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements 34 and 35. Information presented focuses on the
College as a whole.

The component unit section of the financial statements includes the financial data of the Fort Scott
Community College Endowment Association. The component unit is reported separately to emphasize
that it is legally separate from the College. None of the information from the component unit are included
in the graphs and tables in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis”. The economic resources
received or held by the component unit are held almost entirely for the direct benefit of the College. The
Fort Scott Community College Endowment Association was formed to promote and foster the educational
purposes of the College, and to create a fund to be used for any program, project or enterprise undertaken
in the interest of the College. The Association acts largely as a fundraising organization, soliciting,
receiving, managing and disbursing contributions on behalf of the College. Most of the contributions
recetved are designated by the donors to be used for specific purposes or by specific departments. In these
instances, the Association serves essentially as a conduit. Contributions that are not designated are used
where the need is considered the greatest, as determined by the Association board of directors. The
Association disbursed to, or on behalf of, the College for the year ended June 30, 2014, $858,780. The
Association can sue and be sued, and can buy, sell, or Jease real property. Separate audited financial
statements are prepared and are available at the Association, and can be requested through the Director of
the Endowment Association. The Association is considered a component unit.

There are three financial statements presented: the Statement of Net Position (page 3); the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (page 4); and, the Statement of Cash Flows (page 5).

Statement of Net Position — The Statement of Net Position presents the assets, liabilities, and net
position of the College as of the end of the fiscal year.

Net position is divided into three categories. Category one, “Invested in capital assets, net of debt”,
provides information on property, plant, and equipment owned by the institution. Category two,
“Restricted”, expendable and non-expendable, are funds that must be spent by the institution as
determined by donors/external entities that have placed time or purpose restrictions on the use of the
assets or resources available only for investment purposes. The final category, “Unrestricted”, are funds
available to be used for any lawful purpose by the institution.

Information presented allows readers to determine assets available to continue operations of the College,
along with information of monies owed vendorsfinvestors/lending institutions. The following chart
provides a picture of net position and their availability for expenditure. Net position increased during the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, by $293,744 over the previous year.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position- The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position reflect the results of the operations and other changes for the fiscal
year. The purpose of the statement is to present the revenues received by the institution, both operating
and non-operating, expenses paid by the institution, operating and non-operating, and any other revenues,
expenses, gains, or losses received or spent by the institution. Changes in total net position, as presented
on the Statement of Net Position, are based on the activity presented in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.

Generally speaking, operating revenues are received for providing goods and services to
customers/constituencies. Operating expenses are monies paid to acquit/produce the goods and services
provided in return for the operating revenues, and to carry out the College’s mission. Non-operating
revenues are revenues received for which goods and services are nof provided. For example, state
appropriations are non-operating because they are provided by the Legislature to the institution without
the Legislature directly receiving goods or services for those revenues.

The following table summarizes the College’s revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the
years ending June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2013/2014 2012/2013
Operating Revenue $12,543,137 $12,695,240
Operating Expenses $18,867.510 $18.510.615
Operating Loss $(6,324,373) 8(5.815,364)
Non-operating Revenues and Expenses $6,618,116 $ 5,948,927
Increase/Decrease in Net Position $293,744 $ 133,553
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Operating Revenues — Operating Revenues of $12,543,137 decreased $152,103 when compared to the
prior year. The following table summarizes the College’s operating revenues for the years ending June 30,
2014 and 2013.

Operating Revenues

2013/2014 2012/2013
Tuition and Fees $ 4,325,507 $ 4,430,968
Federal Grants and Contracts $ 5,991,968 $ 6,018,969
State Grants and Contracts $ 16,620 $ 9,292
Auxiliary Enterprises $ 521,313 $ 455,600
Other $ 1,687,729 $ 1,780,411
Total Operating Revenues $ 12,543,137 $ 12,695,240

Increase/decrease in revenues from the following; tuition and fees, decreased enrollment; federal and state
grants- revenues decreased; auxiliary enterprises, decreased housing participants; and other revenue,
increase miscellaneous income and reclassification of auxiliary funds. '

Operating Expenses- Operating Expenses of $18,867,510 increased $356,898 compared to the prior
year. The following table summarizes the College’s operating expenses for the years ended June 30, 2014
and 2013.

Operating Expenses

2013/2014 2012/2013
Instruction $ 9,126,628 $ 8,675,275
Public Service $ 4,991 $ 7.010
Academic Support $ 328,266 $ 373,847
Student Services $ 2,032,253 , $ 2,037,636
Institutional Support $ 1,641,883 $ 1,447,149
Operation and Maintenance $ 1,094,943 $ 1,144,874
Scholarships and Awards $ 3,678,588 $ 3,945,653
Auxiliary Enterprises $ 959,958 $ 879,168
Total Operating Expenses $ 18,867,510 $ 18,510,612
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Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses- Non-operating revenues and expenses of $6,618,116
increased $669,188 when compare to the prior year. Increased assessed valuation and increased mill levy
from the county allowed total revenue to be more than the previous year and SB155 increased the state
appropriations. The following table summarizes the College’s non-operating revenues and expenses for
the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,

Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses
2013/2014 2012/2013
State Appropriations $ 3,777,083 § 3,681,898
County Appropriations (local taxes) $ 3,160,347 $ 2,605,138
Investment Income $ $ 952
Interest on Capital Assets-related debt $ (319.314) $ (339,060)
Total Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses $ 6,618,116 b 5,948,928

Statement of Cash Flows- The Statement of Cash Flows presents detailed information about the cash
activity of the institution during the fiscal year. The statement is divided into five parts:

1} Operating Activities- This section deals with the operating cash flows and shows net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities of the institution. ‘

2) Non-Capital Financing Activities- This section shows the cash received and spent for non-
operating, non-investing, and non-capital financing purposes.

3) Capital Financing Activities — This section deals with the cash used for the acquisition and
construction of capital and related items.

4) Investing Activities- This section reflects cash flow from investing activities and shows
purchases, proceeds, and interest received from investing activities.

5) Net Change in Cash- The Final section reconciles net cash used in relation to operating income or
loss reflected in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position.

The following summarizes the College’s cash flows for the years ending June 30, 2010 through 2014.
Additional infermation is presented on page 4 of the audit report,

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

2015/2014 2012/2013 2011/2012 2010/2011 2009/2010

30-Jun  $ 1,606,421 $ 1,827,504 $ 1,645,024 1,476,865 $ 878,498

Capital Assets and Debt Administration-At June 30, 2014, the College had $24,829,483 invested in
capital assets net of accumulated depreciation of $14,648,774. Depreciation charges for the current year
total $918,885 compared to $979,721 in the prior year.

The outstanding long-term debt of the College includes three capital leases totaling $7,576,180. Included
is Boileau Hall constructed in 2002. Major mechanical equipment replacements were completed after
entering into an Energy Performance Contract with Chevron Energy Solutions Company. The total
project of over $2.1 million allowed for much-needed replacement of the outdated and inefficient boiler
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system in the Administrative Building. Glass windows and doors were replaced in both the academic and
administration buildings with thermally broken double plane glass with low-E glaze treatment and
aluminum window frames. Energy conservation retrofits were installed throughout the entire campus,
including dormitories, to lighting and water fixtures, and an energy management program was installed.
The Ellis Fine Arts Center debt was re-financed by the College.

Economic Qutlook- The College has maintained past success of close management to control
expenditures and operations in spite of reductions in State funding and enrollment. The following table

reflects enrollment over the past five years.

Credit Hour History
201372014 2012/2013 201172012 2010/2011 2009/2010
Academic Hours 27,280 26,935 30,517 30,400 29,442
Vocational
Hours 17,695 18,580 20,056 22,132 21,152
Total 44,975 45,515 50,573 52,532 50,594

AV NN KOl o
Richard D. Hedges v

President
Fort Scott Community College
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees
Fort Scott Community College
Fort Scott, Kansas 66701

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Fort Scott Community College (College), Fort
Scott, Kansas, which are comprised of the statement of net position as of June 30, 2014, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the fiscal year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements which collectively comprise the College’s financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on auditor’s Judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Fort Scott Community College as of June 30, 2014, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed on the table of
contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence
to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements. Other schedules listed in the table of
contents as supplementary information, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required
by the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and
Non-Profit Organizations, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements, These schedules are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 5, 2015
on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters,
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

00, Bk Boban
DIEHL., BANWART, BOLTON, CPAs PA

March 5, 2015
Fort Scott, Kansas



FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2014

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, net of allowance
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted Assets
Endowment Association Investments
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Compensated Absences

Deposits Held in Custody for Others

Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Assets held for others in Charitable Remainder Trusts
Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Obligations
Capital Leases Payable
Less Current Portion included above
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted - Temporarily
Restricted - Permanently
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

STATEMENT 1

Primary Component Unit-
Institution- Endowment
College Association

$ 1,606,420.55 $  663,592.75
2.121,704.16 -

3,728.124.71 663,592.75

4,594,162.73

14.648.774.36

14,648,774.36

4,594,162.73

3 18.376.899.07 _§ 5.257.755.48

$  201,940.03 $ 64,645.25
148,492.00 -
146,999.20 -
539.550.60 -

1,036,981.83 64.645.25

- 485,442.00
127,016.00 -
7,576,179.96 -
(539,550.60) -

7,163,645.36 485,442.00

8,200.627.19 550,087.25
7,072,594.40 -

- 693,901.97

- 3.810,991.08

3,103,677.48 202,775.18

10,176,271.88 4,707,668.23

$ 18.376.899.07

$§ 525775548

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT 2

FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY CCLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

REVENUES
Operating Revenues
Student Tuition and Fees
Federal Grants and Contracts
State Grants and Contracts
Other
Auxiliary Enterprises
Total Operating Revenues

EXPENSES
Operating Expenses
Educational and General
Instruction
Public Service
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support
Operation and Maintenance
Scholarships and Awards
Auxiliary Enterprise
Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
State Appropriations
County Appropriations
Gifts
Investment Income
Interest on Capital Assets -- related debt
Net Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
Before Other Revenue and Expenses

Other Revenue and (Expenses)
Additions to Permanent Endowments

INCREASE INNET POSITION
NET POSITION -- Beginning of Year

NET POSITION -- End of Year

Primary Component Unit-
Institution- Endowment
College Association

$ 4325507.15 $ -
5,991,968.11 -
16,619.90 -
1,687,729.18 -
521,312.66 -

12,543,137.00 -

9,126,627.18 -
4,991.42 -
328,265.79 2748742
2,032,252.55 -
1,641,883.45 -

1,094,943 .22 -
3,678,588.44 831,292.59
959,957.74 -
18,867,509.79 858,780.01
(6,324,372.79) (858,780.01)

3,777,083.00 -
3,160,347.10 -
- 609,768.00
- 024,601.96
(319,313.62) -
6,618.116.48 1,234,369.96
293,743.69 375,589.95
- 101,758.62
293,743.69 477,348.57
9,882,528.19 4,230,319.66

$ 10,176.271.88 _§ 4.707.668.23

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




STATEMENT 3
FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS
Statement of Cash Flows - Primary Institution - College
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Primary
Institution-
College
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Student Tuition and Fees $ 4,461,608.26
Federal Grants and Contracts 5,770,312.04
State Grants and Contracts 16,619.90
Sales and Services of Auxiliary Enterprises 521,312.66
Other 1,687,729.18
Payments on Behalf of Employees (8,952,080.82)
Payments for Supplies and Materials (3,844,522.87)
Payments for Other Expenses (5.045,586.68)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (5,384,608.33)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCIAL ACITIVITIES
State Appropriations _ 3,777,083.00
County Appropriations 3.160.347.10
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Noncapital Financing Activities 6,937,430.10
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments for Purchase of Fixed Assets (959,081.41)
Proceeds from New Long Term Debt 93,077.13
Principal Paid on Long Term Debt (588.,587.66)
Interest Paid on Long Term Debt (319.313.62)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities (1,773.905.56)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Earned on Investments -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (221,083.79)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,827.504.34
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 1.606.420.55

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Income (Loss) $ (6,324,372.79)
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Depreciation Expense 918,884.74
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (85,554.96)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 40,961.28
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences & OPEB Obligation 118,720.00
Increase (Decrease) in Deposits Held for Others (53,246.60)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities _$ (5.384.608.33)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT 4
FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS
Statement of Cash Flows - Component Unit - Endowment Association
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
Component Unit-
Endowment
Association

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets $  477348.57
Adjustments to reconcile Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets

to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Increase (decrease) in Assets held for others (20,939.00)
{Gain} loss on investments sold (76,547.10)
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments held (443,287.74)
Increase (decrease) in due to FSCC 28,155.84
Contributions restricted for Endowment (101,758.62)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (137,028.05)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Change in value of Crats (18,212.21)
Cash from investments sold or matured 806,624.80

Purchases of investments

(853.238.11)

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities (64,825.52)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Collections from endowment contributions 101,758.62
Net Cash Provided by (Used in} Financing Activities 101,758.62
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (100,094.95)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 763,687.70
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 5 663.592.75

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-6 -



FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Fort Scott Community College (College). have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), including
GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statemenis — and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments, and Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements —
and Managemeni’s Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities. The college
follows the “business-type activities™ reporting requirements of GASB Statement Nos. 34 and 35.
The significant accounting policies of the College follow:

Financial Reporting Entity

The financial statements of the College are required by accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States to include those of separately administered entities that are controlled by or
dependent on the College. Control or dependence is determined on the basis of the significance of
their operational or financial relationships with the College. Entities that are legally separate tax-
exempt organizations are required to be reported in the College’s financial statements if the
resources of the affiliated organization benefit the College, the College is entitled to or can
otherwise access the resources, and the resources are considered significant to the College.

Fort Scott Community College Endowment Association (Association) is a legally separate, tax-
exempt component unit of the College. The Association acts primarily as a fund-raising
organization to supplement funds to provide scholarships to students at the College and to provide
other financial support to the College. The majority of the resources, or income thereon, that the
Association holds and invests are restricted to the activities to the College by the donors. Because
these restricted resources held by the Association can only be used by, or for the benefit of the
College or its constituents, the Association is considered a component unit of the College and is
discretely presented in the College’s financial statements.

The Association is a nonprofit organization that reports under standards of the Financial
Accounting  Standards Board (FASB). As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and
presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and presentation
features. No modifications have been made to the Association’s financial information in the
College’s financial reporting entity for these differences. Separately issued audited financial
statements for the Association may be obtained from the College’s administrative office at Fort
Scott, Kansas.

Financial Statement Presentation
The accounting policies of the College conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America as applicable to colleges and universities.




SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Accounting

For fiancial reporting purposes, the College is considered a special-purpose government engaged
only in business-type activities. The financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
carned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related
cash flows take place. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the years in which they are
levied. Grants and other similar types of revenue are recognized as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the grantor have been met.

The College applies all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements and all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements
and interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions and Accounting Research
Bulletins (ARB) issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements,

Operating revenues and expenses are distinguished from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with the College’s ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
College are charges to students for tuition and fees, grants and contracts for specific operating
activities of the College and sales of goods and services. Operating expenses include the cost of
faculty, administration and support expenses, enterprise operations and depreciation on capital
assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

Cash, Investments. and Cash Equivalents

The College pools idle cash from all funds for the purpose of increasing income through
investment activities. Investments of the College consist of certificates of deposit and are stated at
cost. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity date of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.

Investments

The College accounts for its investments at fair value. Changes in unrealized gain (loss) on the
carrying value of investments are reported as a component of investment income in the statement
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets.




SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Accounts Receivable and Deferred Revenue

Accounts receivable consist of tuition and fee charges to students and auxiliary enterprise services
provided to students, faculty and staff, the majority of each residing in the State of Kansas.
Accounts receivable also includes amounts due from the Federal government, state and local
governments, or private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures
made pursuant to the College’s grant and contracts.

In accordance with governing state statutes, property taxes levied during the current year are a
revenue source to be used to finance the budget of the ensuing year. Taxes are assessed on a
calendar year basis and become a lien on the property on November 1st of each vear. The County
Treasurer is the tax collection agent for all taxing entities within the County. Property owners
have the option of paying one-half or the full amount of the taxes levied on or before December
20" during the year levied with the balance to be paid on or before May 10" of the ensuing vear.
State statutes prohibit the County Treasurer from distributing taxes collected in the year levied
prior to January 1% of the ensuing year.

For revenue recognition purposes, taxes levied during the current year are not due and receivable
until the ensuing year. Property taxes levied in November are recorded as taxes receivable. Taxes
levied but not received as of June 30 are presented as accounts receivable—taxes in process and
deferred revenue to indicate that they are not appropriable. It is not practicable to apportion
delinquent taxes held by the County Treasurer at the end of the year and, further, the amounts
thereof are not material in relationship to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Budgetary Information

Kansas statutes require that an annual operating budget be legally adopted for current funds -

unrestricted and plant funds (unless specifically exempted by statute). Although directory rather

than mandatory, the statutes provide for the following sequence and timetable in the adoption of

the legal annual operating budget:

1. Preparation of the budget for the succeeding fiscal year on or before August 1.

2. Publication in local newspaper of the proposed budget and notice of public hearing on the
budget on or before August 5.

3. Public hearing on or before August 15, but at least ten days after publication of notice of
hearing.

4. Adoption of the final budget on or before August 25.

The statutes allow for the governing body to increase the originally adopted budget for previously
unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem property taxes. To do this, a notice of
public hearing to amend the budget must be published in the local newspaper. At least ten days
after publication the hearing may be held and the governing body may amend the budget at that
time. There were no budgets amended in 2014.



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Budgetary Information (Continued)

The statutes permit transferring budgeted amounts between line items within an individual fund.
However, such statutes prohibit expenditures in excess of the total amount of the adopted budget
of expenditures of individual funds.

Annual operating budgets are prepared using the modified accrued basis of accounting, modified
further by the recording of encumbrances. Revenues are recognized when cash is received.
Expenditures include cash disbursements, accounts payable, and encumbrances. Encumbrances
are commitments by the College for future payments and are supported by a document evidencing
the commitment, such as a purchase order or contract. All unencumbered appropriations {legal
budget expenditure authority) lapse at year-end.

A legal operating budget is not required for Current Funds - Restricted and Agency funds.

Spending in funds which are not subject to the legal annual operating budget requirement are
controlled by federal regulations, other statutes, or by the use of internal spending limits
established by the governing body.

Capital Assets
Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair market value at the date of

donation in the case of gifts. For equipment purchased as a single asset, the College’s
capitalization policy includes all items with a unit cost of $5,000 or more, and an estimated useful
life of greater than one year. When multiple equipment items are purchased as an integrated
system of assets, they are considered as a single asset when applying the above capitalization
rules. Items purchased together, but that can function individually on a stand-alone basis, are
considered on an item-by-item basis when applying the above thresholds. Renovations to
buildings, infrastructure, and land improvements that significantly increase the value or extend the
useful life of the structure are capitalized. Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to
operating expense in the year in which the expense was incurred. Depreciation is computed using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings and Additions 10 to 40 Years
Machinery and Equipment 51020 Years
Vehicles and Trailers 4 to 10 Years

Noncurrent Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities include (1) principal amounts of revenue bonds payable, notes payable, or
capital lease obligations with contractual maturities greater than one vyear; (2) estimated
amounts for accrued compensated absences and other liabilities that will not be paid within the
next fiscal year; or (3) other liabilities that although payable within one year, are to be paid
from funds that are classified as noncurrent assets.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Net Position
The College’s net position is classified as follows:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt: This represents the College’s total
investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and outstanding debt
obligations related to those capital assets. To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet
expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component of investment in
capital assets, net of related debt.

Restricted Net Position — expendable: Restricted expendable net position include resources
in which the College is legally or contractually obligated to spend resources in accordance
with restrictions imposed by external third parties.

Restricted Net Position — nonexpendable: Nonexpendable restricted net position consist of
endowment and similar type funds in which donors or other outside sources have stipulated,
as a condition of the gift instrument, that the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in
perpetuity, and invested for the purpose of producing present and future income, which may
either be expended or added to principal.

Unrestricted Net Position: Unrestricted net position represent resources derived from student
tuition and fees, state appropriations and sales and services of educational departments and
auxiliary enterprises. These resources are used at the discretion of the governing board to meet
current expenses for any purpose. These resources also include auxiliary enterprises, which are
substantially self-supporting activities that provide services for students, faculty, and staff,

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources,
the College’s policy is to first apply the expense towards unrestricted resources, and then
towards restricted resources.

Income Taxes

The College, as a political subdivision of the State of Kansas, is excluded from Federal income
taxes under Section 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended. The Endowment
Association is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(C) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
It is not subject to income taxes except on unrelated business income. No unrelated business
income tax has been paid in the current year. The Association is subject to routine audits by taxing
Jurisdictions; however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods in progress. Management
believes it is no longer subject to income tax examination for years prior to 2011.

-11 -



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Classification of Revenues
The College has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating revenues according to
the following criteria:

Operating revenues: Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of
exchange transactions, such as (1) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and
allowances, (2) sales of services of auxiliary enterprises, net of scholarship discounts and
allowances, and (3) most Federal, state and local grants and contracts, and Federal
appropriations.

Nonoperating revenues: Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of
nonexchange transactions, such as gifts and contributions, and other revenue sources that are
defined as nonoperating revenues by generally accepted accounting principles, such as state
appropriations and investment income.

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances

Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported net of
scholarship discounts and allowances in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
assets. Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between the stated charge and the
goods and services provided by the College, and the amount that is paid by students and/or third
parties making payments on the students” behalf. Certain governmental grants, such as Pell grants,
and other Federal, state or nongovernmental programs, are recorded as either operating or
nonoperating revenues in the College’s financial statements. To the extent that revenues from
such programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the College has
recorded a scholarship discount and allowance.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

Employee vacation pay is accrued at year-end for financial statement purposes. The liability and
expense incurred are recorded at year-end as accrued vacation payable in the statement of net
assets, and a component of compensation and benefit expense in the statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net assets.

A total of 10 to 15 days of vacation per year can be accumulated by administrators and support
staff up to a maximum of 15 days. A total of 10 days per year of sick leave are granied (o
employees, which can be accumulated by each employee up to a maximum of 120 days.
Accumulated sick days are lost when employment at the College ends.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Compensated Absences (Continued)

The College accrues a liability for compensated absences which meet the following criteria:

1. The College's obligation relating to employees' rights to receive compensation for future
absences is attributable to employees’ services already rendered.

2. The obligation relates to rights that vest or accumulate.

3. Payment of the compensation is probable.

4, The amount can be reasonably estimated.

In accordance with the above criteria the College has not accrued a liability for sick pay which has
been carned but not taken inasmuch as the amount cannot be reasonably estimated. The liability
for vacation pay totaled $148,492.00, which is considered a long-term liability of the College,
which is not to be paid from current resources.

Termination and Post Employment Benefits

No termination benefits are provided to College employees when employment with the College
ends except for the accrued Compensated Absences as discussed in Note 1 and Early Retirement
Program as discussed in Note 9.

As provided by K.S.A. 12-5040, the College allows retirees to participate in the group health
insurance plan. Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation- Act (COBRA), the
government makes health care benefits available to eligible former employees and eligible
dependents. Certain requirements are outlined by the federal government for this coverage. Fach
retiree pays the full amount of the applicable premium at a higher premium than the active
employees. Accordingly, the Coilege has determined that there is no cost to the College under
this program.

Pension Plan

Substantially all full-time College employees are members of the State of Kansas Public
Employees Retirement System, which is a multi-employer state-wide pension plan. The College's
policy is to fund all pension costs accrued; such costs to be funded are actuarially determined
annually by the State.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Compliance with Kansas Statutes
The College was in compliance with the cash basis and budgeted laws of the State of Kansas.
There were no violations of Kansas statutes identified during the current fiscal year.

CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Primary Institution: College

K.8.A. 9-1401 establishes the depositories which may be used by the College. The statute requires
banks eligible to hold the College’s funds have a main or branch bank in the county in which the
Government is located and the banks provide an acceptable rate of return on funds. In addition,
K.8.A. 9-1402 requires the banks to pledge securities for deposits in excess of FDIC coverage.
The College has no other policies that would further limit interest rate risk.
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CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (Continued)

K.S.A. 12-1675 limits the College’s investment of idle funds to time deposits, open accounts, and
certificates of deposit with allowable financial institutions; U.S. government securities; temporary
notes; no-fund warrants; repurchase agreements; and the Kansas Municipal Investment Pool. The
College has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices, but has limited
the investments to time deposits at the local bank.

Concentration of credit risk. State statutes place no limit on the amount the College may invest in
any one issuer as long as the investments are adequately secured under K.S.A. 9-1402 and 9-1405.

Custodial credit risk — deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the College’s deposits may not be returned to it. State statutes require the Government’s deposits
in financial institutions o be entirely covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held
under a joint custody receipt issued by a bank within the State of Kansas, the Federal Reserve
Bank of Kansas City, or the Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka, except during designated “peak
periods™ when required coverage is 50%. The College does not have any “peak periods”
designated.

At June 30, 2014 the College’s carrying amount of deposits was $1,604,420.55 and the bank
balance was $2,713.671.71. Although the bank balance was held by four banks, over 95% is held
at one bank resulting in a concentration of credit risk. Of the bank balance, $611,766.98 was
covered by federal depository insurance, and $2,101,904.73 was collateralized with securities
totaling $4,145,949.85 held by the pledging financial institutions’ agents in the College’s name.

Component Unit — Endowment Association

At year-end the carrying amount of the Association’s deposits totaled $663,592.75. Although
cash deposits are sometimes in excess of limits insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, the amount of credit risk to the Association is considered minimal.

INVESTMENTS

Primary Institution - FSCC:
Investments are made in accordance with an investment policy established by the Board of
Trustees of the College and are stated at cost, which approximates the market value.

There were no investments at June 30, 2014.

Component Unit — FSCC Endowment Association:
Investments are made in accordance with an investment policy established by the Board of
Directors of the Association and are stated at market value.
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4.

INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments at June 30, 2014 are held in Trust by a financial institution and are comprised of the
following:

JUNE 30, 2014
COST MARKET

Equity Securities $ 2,659,999.50 $ 3.457,178.45
U.S. Government Obligations 17,715.41 18,928.63
Non-Government Obligations 626,374.67 639,560.26
Insurance Policies 34,317.15 15,838.19
Alternative Investments 276,829.99 309,057.71
Money Market Funds and

short-term debt obligations 153.599.49 153.599.49

$ 3,768.836.21 $_4,594.162.73

Investment income of the Association is comprised of the following;

Dividends and Interest $ 65,615.91
Realized gains (losses) 76,547.10
Unrealized gains (losses) 443,287.74
Change in value of CRAT 39.151.21

$ 62460196

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accouniing
Standards Codification (ASC) establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). In determining fair value, the Foundation uses
various methods including market, income, and cost approaches. Based on these approaches, the
Foundation utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets,
including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation techniques.
The inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable inputs. The
Foundation uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs. The observability of the inputs used in the valuation techniques is
the basis for determining the appropriate fair value hierarchy level.

Certain of the Association’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis, including money market, fixed income, and equity instruments. The three levels
of the fair value hierarchy and a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments
measured at fair value are as follows:

Level I — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of
the reporting date. Level 1 primarily consists of financial instruments such as money market
securities and listed equities.

Level 2 — Pricing inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are either directly
observable or that can be derived or supported from observable data as of the reporting date.
Instruments in this category include certain U.S. government agency and sponsored entity debt
securities and interest rate swap contracts.
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INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Level 3 — Pricing inputs include those that are significant to the fair value of the financial asset
or financial liability and are not observable from objective sources. These inputs may be used
with internally developed methodologies that result in management’s best estimate of fair
value,

The Endowment Associations investments are reported at fair value as follows:
Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity and Debt Securities $ 4,578,324.54 § - $ - $4,578,324.54
Insurance Policies - - 15,838.19 15,838.19
Total Assets at Fair Value $4,578,324.54 § - $15,838.19 $4,594,162.73

Changes in level 3 investments for the year ended June 30, 2014 were as follows:

Insurance
Policies
Balance June 30, 2013 $14,368.20
Unrealized gain (loss) 1,469.99

Balance June 30, 2014 $15.838.19
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2014, consisted of the amounts due as follows:

Primary
Institution
Accounts Receivable -
Current:
Federal Grants $ 701,591.75
Other Receivables 1.420,112.41
Total Accounts Receivable - Current $2.121,704.16

The College charges any uncollectible accounts directly to current revenues. All accounts at June
30, 2014 are considered fully collectible. Uncollectible amounts for unconditional promises to
give to the Association are expected to be insignificant. Accordingly, no provision is made for
uncollectible amounts,
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7.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Following are the changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2014:
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Balance Balance
June 30, 2012 Additions Retirements June 30, 2014
Capital Assets:
Land and Improvements $ 985,633.50 § - $ - 985,633.50
Building and Improvements 18,688,506.72 559,708.33 - 19,248,215.05
Furniture and Equipment 3,416,410.63 338,888.00 13,344.00 3,741,954.63
Vehicles and Trailers 798.215.19 64.353.00 8.888.00 853,680.19
Subtotal: 23,888.766.04 962.949.33 22.232.00 24.829.483.37
Accumulated Depreciation:
Building and Improvements 6,520,953.58 531,638.03 - 7.052,591.61
Furniture and Equipment 2,017,700.25 345,579.31 9,476.08 2,353,803.48
Vehicles and Trailers 741.534.52 41.667.40 8.888.00 774.313.92
Subtotal: 9.280.188.35 918.884.74 18.364.00 10,180.709.01
Net Capital Assets $ 14,608,577.69 $ 4406459 $  3.867.92 14,648.774.36
Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions:
Instruction $564,172.04
Academic Support 105,010.32
Institutional Support 86458.37
Auxiliary 123,161.70
Student Support 40.,082.31
$918.884.74
LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt of the College consisted of the following as of June 30, 2014:
Capital Leases
Equipment lease purchase agreement, dated December 2006, in the
original amount of $2,128,888 to purchase and install building
improvements payable in monthly installments ranging from $13,074
to $15,596, with an interest rate of 4.285%, scheduled to mature
November 2025. $  1,621,41095
Building improvements lease purchase agreement, dated June 6, 2014,
in the original amount of $93,077 to finance building improvements,
payable in monthly installments of $2,687 with an interest rate of
2.51%, scheduled to mature in June 2017. 93,077.13
Building lease purchase agreement, dated October 1, 2010, in the
original amount of $200,000 to purchase the Armory building, payable
in monthly installments of $1,485 with an interest rate of 4.0%,
scheduled to mature in October 2025. 161,691.88



7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Dormitory building lease purchase agreement, dated January 4, 2010
to refinance the dormitory building built with revenue bonds issued in
2001, originally totaling $2,900,000. The revenue bonds were
refinanced on January 4, 2010 with a capital lease for $2,585,000. The
lease requires semi-annual lease payments of $51,857.50 thru February
2013, and then semi-annual principal and interest payments of
approximately $100,000 with a final payment of $204,500 in August
2031. Interest rates range from 2.50% for the principal due through
August 2013 to 4.50% for principal due February 2028 through
maturity.

Fine arts building lease purchase agreement, dated December 1, 2010
in the original amount of $4,050,000. The lease requires semi-annual
interest payments at 4.04% and annual principal payments ranging
from $270,000 to $415,000, with final payment due December 1,
2022,

2,490,000.00

3.210.000.00

Total Long Term Debt

$ 7.576.179.96

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014:

Received
or (Paid)

Principal
June 30, 2012

Principal

Long Term Debt June 30, 2013

interest Paid

Capital Leases

Building Improvements $ 1,712,678.97 $ (91,268.02) $ 1,621,410.95 $ 71,622.54
Fine Arts Building 3,500,000.00 (290,000.00)  3,210,000.00  135,540.90
Dormitory Building 2,585,000.00 (95,000.00)  2,490,000.00  103,152.17
USB Dell Computers 101,298.32 (101,298.32) - 2,196.33
City of Fort Scott Armory 172,713.20 (11,021.32) 161,691.88 6,801.68
Cosmetology - 93.077.13 93,077.13 -
Total Long Term Debt $ 8,071,690.49 § (495,510.53) $ 7,576,179.96 $319.313.62
The bond principal and interest requirements are as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending Capital Leases
June 30 Principal Interest Totals
2015 $ 539,550.60 $ 299.,885.11 839.435.71
2016 562,687.47 278,725.15 841,412.62
2017 591,277.28 256,329.62 847,606.90
2018 582,901.49 233,235.05 816,136.54
2019 606,948.97 209,539.99 816,488.96
2020 to 2024 3,062,506.05 654,257.43 3,716,763.48
2025 to 2029 1,070,308.10 231,482.54 1,301,790.64
2030 to 2034 560,000.00 43.087.50 603,087.50
Totals $ 7.576.179.96 2,206,542 $ 978272235
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LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Component Unit — FSCC Endowment

Industrial Revenue Bonds totaling $4,500,000 were issued to help pay for the construction of the
Fort Scott Community College Fine Arts building. In December 2010, the bonds were refinanced
when the College issued a lease purchase agreement in the amount of $4,050,000. The
refinancing was done to save interest on the debt and to restructure the debt service payments on
the bonds. The new lease purchase agreement is in the name of the College. Accordingly, the
bonds are no longer shown as debt of the Endowment Association.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description: The College participates in the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System
("KPERS"), a cost-sharing multiple -employer defined benefit pension plan as provided by K.S.A.
74-4901, er seq. KPERS provides retirement benefits, life insurance, disability income benefits,
and death benefits. Kansas law establishes and amends benefit provisions. KPERS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. That report may be obtained by writing to KPERS (611 S. Kansas, Suite 100,
Topeka, Kansas 66603) or by calling 1-888-275-5737.

Funding Policy: K.S8.A. 74-4919 and K.S.A. 74-4921 establish the KPERS member-employee
contribution rates. Effective July 1, 2009 KPERS has two benefit structures and funding depends
on whether the employee 1s a Tier 1 or Tier 2 member. Tier 1 members are active and
contributing members hired before July 1, 2009. Tier 2 members were first employed in a
covered position on or after July 1, 2009. Kansas law established the KPERS member-employee
contribution rate of 4% of covered salary for Tier 1 members and at 6% of covered salary for Tier
2 members. Member employees’ contributions are withheld by their employer and paid to
KPERS according to the provisions of section 414(h) of the Internal Revenue Code. The State of
Kansas is required to confribute the remaining amount necessary {o achieve the actuarially
determined contribution rate. State law sets a limitation on annual increases in the contribution
rates. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, the State of Kansas contributed 11.12% of covered
payroll from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014.

OTHER POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the government makes
health care benefits available to eligible former employees and eligible dependents. Certain
requirements are outlined by the federal government for this coverage. The premium is paid in full
by the insured. There is no cost to the government under this program.
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OTHER POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

(GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Emplovers for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions

Plan description: The College sponsors a single-employer other post-employment benefit plan that
provides medical benefits to qualifying retirees and their dependents. Employees, who qualify for
pension benefits under the Kansas Public Employee Retirement System (KPERS) and are enrolled
in the College’s insurance benefits during the benefit plan year prior to retirement, are eligible for
benefits. Under KPERS, a participant must be at least age 55 with at least 10 years of service or
meet Rule of 85 (age + service>= 85) at any age to be eligible. Also, a retiring employee who
waives continuing participation in the College’s health plan at the time of retirement is not eligible
to participate at a later date. Employees who qualify for a total disability benetit under the KPERS
Disability Benefits Program are eligible for benefits until they qualify for Medicare. Spouses may
continue coverage upon retiree death or attainment of Medicare eligibility age under Cobra for up
to 36 months not to exceed the spouse’s own age 65.

Funding policy: The College establishes and amends contribution requirements. The current
funding policy of the College is to fund benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. This arrangement does
not qualify as other post-employment benefits (OPEB) plan assets under Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45 for current GASB reporting. Retirees,
who either meet the Rule of 85 or are age 55 with 15 years of service upon retirement, pay 100%
of group insurance premiums fo maintain coverage.

Annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation: The College’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is
calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover the normal cost
each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities or funding excess) over a period not to
exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the College’s annual OPEB
obligation.

Annual Required Contribution $ 152,016.00

Interest on Net OPEB Obligation -

Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution -
Aniual OPEB Cost 152,016.00

Net Contributions Made 25.000.00
Increase OPEB Obligation 127,016.00

Net OPEB Obligation — June 30, 2013 -

Net OPEB Obligation — June 30, 2014 $127.016.00

The College’s OPEB cost, the percentage of OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for fiscal year 2014 follows.

Fiscal Annual Expected Net Percentage of Net
Year OPEB Employer Annual OPEB OPEB
Ended Cost Coniributions Cost Coniributed | _Obligation
June 30,2014 | § 152,016.00 $ 25,000.00 16.44% $127,016.00
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OTHER POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress: As of July 1, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation, the
plan was zero percent funded. The College’s actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $925,197
and the actuarial value of assets is zero, resulting In an unfunded actuaria! accrued liability
(UAAL) of $925,197. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the
plan) was $5,320,930 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 17.4%.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Actuarial valuations for an ongoing Plan involve estimates
of the vatue of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far
into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continuous revision as actual results
are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Although the
valuation results are based on values the College’s actuarial consultant believes are reasonable
assumptions, the valuation result is only an estimate of what future costs may actually be and
reflect a long-term perspective. Deviations in any of several factors, such as future interest rate
discounts, medical cost inflation, Medicare coverage risk, and changes in marital status, could
result in actual costs being greater or less than estimated. The required schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information immediately following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets 1s increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive Plan (the Plan
as understood by the employer and the Plan members) and include the types of benefits provided
at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the
employer and Plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of shori-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

In the initial actuarial valuation for the Plan as of July 1, 2013, the projected unit credit actuarial
cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included an 3.0% investment rate of return (net
of administrative expenses), which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns
on Plan assets and on the College’s own investments calculated based on the funded level of the
Plan at the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 7.0% initially, reduced by
decrements to an ultimate rate of 5.25% afier seven vears. The actuarial value of assets will be
determined using fair value. The UAAL will be amortized over a 30 year open period in level
dollar amounts.

Early Retirement Benefits:

The College has adopted a policy providing early retirement benefits. Professional employees
with at least 15 years of full time service are eligible to receive up to 30% of the value of his or
her unused sick leave upon retirement, subject to a maximum of 30 days of accumulated sick
leave. The employee must be at least 60 years old as of June 30 of the retiring year or has met
KPERS retirement eligibility.

Fifteen employees are eligible to receive benefits totaling $21,534 as of June 30. These are not
accrued as liabilities in the financial statements since payment is contingent upon the eligible
employees announcing their intention to retire as stipulated in the College’s early retirement
program.
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10.

11.

12,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In the normal course of operations the College participates in various federal and state grant
programs. These grants are often subject to additional audits by the granting agencies, the purpose
of which is to ensure compliance with the specific grant conditions. Any liability for
reimbursement, which may arise as a result of these audits, cannot be reasonably determined at
this time, although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employees health and life; and natural
disasters. The College manages these tisks of loss through various insurance policies.

ADDITTIONAL SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES FOR THE FSCC
ENDOWMENT ASSOCIATION — A COMPONENT UNIT

SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Statement Presentation

U.S. GAAP requires the Association to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net position: unrestricted net position, temporarily
restricted net position, and permanently restricted net position.

Contributions and Unconditional Pledges

US. GAAP specifies that contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily
restricted, or permanently restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor restrictions. Restricted contributions are required to be reported as temporarily restricted
support and are then reclassified to unrestricted net assets upon expiration of the donor
restrictions.

Contributions Establishing Charitable Trusts

The Association accepts donor contributions to establish trust agreements in exchange for a
named beneficiary to receive a fixed dollar annual return or a specific percentage of the fair value
ol the trust assets for the beneficiary’s lifetime or a specific time period. A portion of the donation
is considered to be a charitable contribution and the remaining portion represents a liability equal
to the present value of future payments. The liability is revalued annually based on actuarially
computed present values. :

Investments

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in
debt securities are reported at their fair values in the statement of financial position. Unrealized
gains and losses are included in the change in net assets.

Pooled Tnvestments
The Association pools cash from various individual endowment principal funds for investment

purposes.
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12.

ADDITIONAL SPECIFIC BISCLOSURES FOR THE FSCC
ENDOWMENT ASSOCIATION — A COMPONENT UNIT - (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES - (Continued)

Restricted Position

Temporarily restricted net position are those whose use by the Association has been limited by
donors to a specific time period or purpose. Upon expiration of the donor’s restrictions,
temporarily restricted net position are classified as unrestricted net position and reported in the
statement of activities as net position released from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions
whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted
contributions in the accompanying financial statements. The appreciation of endowment funds in
excess of the amounts contributed is also classified as temporarily restricted net position.
Permanently restricted net position are restricted by donors to be maintained by the Association in

perpetuity.

Income Taxes

The Association is a non-profit Section 501(c) (3) tax exempt organization. It is not subject to
income taxes except on unrelated business income. No unrelated business income tax has been
paid in the current year. The Association is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions;
however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods in progress. Management believes it is
no longer subject to income tax examination for years prior to 2011.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments that appears on the statements of financial position, for which it was
practicable to estimate that value (for all categories listed, the carrying value approximates fair
value):

Cash and Cash Equivalents — For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand and cash in demand accounts. The carrying
values of the Association’s cash equivalents approximate market value,

Contributions Receivable — Fair value is approximately equal to the book value and was
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows.

Other Receivables — Loans receivable are reported in the statements of financial position
as outstanding principal, adjusted for the allowance for doubtful accounts. Interest
receivable is receivable in the current year and recorded at cost, which approximates the
market value.

Investments — Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all
investments in debt securities are reported at fair value, with gains and losses included in
the statement of activities. The fair value is determined by the investment custodian
utilizing prices quoted by securities dealers or brokers, investment bankers, or statistical
services on the valuation date. Management’s estimate of the fair value of investments is
included in Note 4.
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12.

ADDITIONAL SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES FOR THE FSCC
ENDOWMENT ASSOCIATION — A COMPONENT UNIT - (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

Charitable Remainder Trusts — Charitable remainder trusts are recognized at fair value in
the period the trust is established and adjusted accordingly at year-end. Assets of such
gifts are reported as a component of marketable securities. Liabilities incurred related to
the acceptance of life income gifts are recognized as the present value of the expected
future cash payments and are discounted at rates specified by the Code Section 7520(a).
Generally, the terms of the life income gifts require the Association to pay a specified
amount or percentage of a fund’s market value to a designated beneficiary for a specified
term or the beneficiary’s life span. Actuarial assumptions related to mortality are based on
tables published by the IRS.

ENDOWMENT FUNDS

The Association’s endowment consists of almost 200 individual fund accounts established for a
variety of purposes. The endowment includes only donor-restricted endowment funds. As
required by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by
the Board of Trustees to function as endowments, are classified and reported on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. The endowment does not include fund accounts that are
wholly expendable.

Interpretation of Relevant Law: The Association has interpreted the Uniform
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair
value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretations, the
Association classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts
donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the
permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the
accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted
endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as
temporarily restricted net assets until the donor’s restriction is met. Effective J uly 1, 2008,
the state of Kansas adopted the UPMIFA, which added certain prudent spending measures
to UMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the Association considers the following factors

in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment
funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund

(2) The purposes of the donor-restricted endowment fund

(3) General economic conditions

(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation

(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
(6) Other resources of the Association

(7) The investment policies of the Association
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12.

ADDITIONAL SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES FOR THE FSCC
ENDOWMENT ASSOCIATION — A COMPONENT UNIT - (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

ENDOWMENT FUNDS - (Continued)

At June 30, 2014, the endowment net position composition by type of fund consisted of the

following:
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Endowment Funds
Donor-restricted $ - $ 693,901.97 $ 3,810,991.08 $4,504,893.05
Board-designated - - - -
Totals $ - $ 693,901.97 $.3.810.991.08 $4.504,893.05
For the year ended June 30, 2014, the changes in the endowment net position are as follows (in
thousands):
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted  Unrestricted Restricted Total
Endowment net position,
As originally stated,
June 30, 2013 $ - $173,780.49  §3,009,992.00 $ 3,183,772.49
Prior Period Adjustment
(See Note 13) - 163,070.94 699,240.46 862,311.40
Endowment net position,
As restated,
June 30, 2013 - 336,851.43 3,709,232 .46 4,046,083.89
Investment Return:
Investment and Dividends - 44,344.78 - 44,344.78
Realized Gains (Losses) - 51,827.39 - 51,827.39
Unrealized Gains (Losses) - 300,142.30 - 300,142.30
Total Investment Return - 396,314.47 - 396,314.47
Contributions - - 101,758.62 101,758.62
Net Assets Released 39,263.93 (39,263.93) - -
Expenses (39,263.93) - - (39.263.93)
Endowment Net Position,
June 30, 2014 $ - $ 693,901.97  $3,810,991.08  $ 4.504,893.05

_25.



12.

13.

ADDITIONAL SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES FOR THE FSCC
ENDOWMENT ASSOCIATION — A COMPONENT UNIT - (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

ENDOWMENT FUNDS - (Continued)

Funds with Deficiencies: From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual
donor-restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor requires the Association
to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. In the absence of donor stipulations or law to the
contrary, decreases in the value of investments of a donor-restricted endowment fund cannot
reduce a permanently restricted fund to an amount below the historical gift value. Accordingly,
any excess losses shall reduce temporarily restricted net position to the extent there is net
appreciation on related funds with donor-imposed temporary restrictions. If there is no
appreciation remaining in the temporary restricted net position, unrestricted net position must be
reduced by the amount of deficiency. As of June 30, 2014, there were no deficiencies.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters: The Association has investment policies that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by operations as well as
endowment donations. Assets are invested in a manner that is intended to produce results that
exceed the respective benchmark while assuming a moderate level of investment risk. The
Association expects its endowment funds, over time, to provide an average rate of return of
approximately at least 5% annually. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives: To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives,
the Association relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through
both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends net of
fees). The Association targets a diversified asset allocation to achieve its long-term return
objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy: Except as
specified by the donor, the Association has adopted a policy in which earnings are allocated
monthly for spending. In establishing this policy, the Association considered the long-term
expected return on its endowment. Accordingly, over the long-term, the Association expects the
current spending policy to allow its endowment to grow at an average of the long-term rate of
inflation. This is consistent with the Association objective to maintain the purchasing power of
the endowed assets held in perpetuity, as well as to provide additional growth through new gifts.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Accounts receivable from prior years totaling $1,011,850.56 as of June 30, 213 were recorded in
the accounting records, resulting in a prior period adjustment of $1,011,850.56. Accordingly, net
position was increased as follows:

Net Position June 30, 2013

(As originally stated) $ 8,870,677.63
Prior Period Adjustment 1,011.850.56
Net Position June 30, 2013

(As restated) $9.882,528.19
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13, PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

Prior Period Adjustments were made to the June 30, 2013 net position balances as follows:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Unrestricted Restricted Total

Net position:

June 30, 2013

(As originally stated) $ 862,399.94 $ 173,780.49 $ 3.009,992.00 $ 4,046,172.43

Endowment Assets (862,311.40) 163,070.94 699.240.46 -

Payable to FSCC 184,147.23 - - 184,147.23
June 30, 2013

(As Restated) $ 184,235.77 $ 336,851.43 $ 3,709.232 46 $ 4.230,319.66

The Association reclassified net position totaling $862,311.40 from Unrestricted Net position to
temporarily and permanently restricted net position. These net assets were identified as
permanently restricted net position of $699,240.46 which represents the amounts of the original
endowment gifis to the Association. Investment earnings, less expenses paid totaled $163,070.94
for these endowment funds. This reclassification occurred when the Association implemented
new accounting software in 2013 and re-examined the donor intentions of numerous gifts to the
Association, primarily in connection with donor matches to Federal grants received in the 1980s.
These gifts were determined to be permanently restricted endowment funds. In addition, a
payable to Fort Scott Community College totaling $184,147.23 as of June 30, 2013 was recorded
in error.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events subsequent to December 31 have been evaluated through March 5, 2015. There are no
subsequent events recognized in these financial statements or recorded in the notes to the financial
statements.
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FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SCHEDULE 1
FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE

FORT SCOTT, KANSAS
Schedule of Funding Progress
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

The College's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed
to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the fiscal year is as follows:

Percentage of

Fiscal Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Year Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2014 $ 152,016.00 16.44% $ 127,016.00

-8 -




FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE

FORT SCOTT, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Unencumbered Cash - Budget and Actual
Current Funds Unrestricted - General Fund (Legal Basis)

REVENUES
Student Tuition and Fees
Tuition
Other Student Fees

Total Student Tuition and Fees

Federal
Pell Grant Administration

Total Federal

State
Operating Aid

Total State

Local

Ad Valorem Tax
Motor Vehicle Tax
Delinquent Tax

In Lieu of Taxes

Total Local
Other

Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Other

TOTAL REVENUES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE 2

Variance -
2014 2014 Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
1,454,382.64 § 1,429,52200 §$ 24.860.64
1,037,501.64 1.400,000.00 (362,498.36)
2,491,884.28 2,829,522.00 (337,637.72)
4,945.00 5,235.00 (290.00)
4,945.00 5,235.00 (290.00)
1,950,210.00 1,950,210.00 -
1,950,210.00 1,950,210.00 -
2,660,581.28 2,493,485.00 167,096.28
364,729.22 320,006.00 44,723.22
132,728.28 81,882.00 50.846.28
2,308.32 - 2,308.32
3,160.,347.10 2,895,373.00 264,974.10
- 1,000.00 (1,000.00)
272,650.43 489.,610.00 (216.959.57)
272.650.43 490,610.00 (217,959.57)
7.880,036.81 8.170,950.00 (290,913.19)
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(Continued) SCHEDULE 2

FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Unencumbered Cash - Budget and Actual
Current Funds Unrestricted - General Fund (Iegal Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Public Service
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support
Operation and Maintenance
Scholarships and Awards

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
OTHER ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS)
Operating Transfers from (to) Other Funds
Transfers In from Other Funds
Transfers Out to Other Funds
Other Funds - Vocational Education
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other
Additions (Deductions)

Unencumbered Cash-Beginning of Year

Unencumbered Cash-End of Year

Variance -
2014 2014 Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)

$ 2.072,490.76

$ 2,000,000.00

§  (72.490.76)

4,991.42 7,100.00 2,108.58
223,255.47 410,000.00 186,744.53
2,001,958.24 2,000,000.00 (1,958.24)
1,749,244.04 2,058,903.00 309,658.96
1,308,240.61 1,699,000.00 390,759.39

24.808.56 34,295.00 9,486.44
7,384,989.10 8,209,268.00 824,308.90
127,204.77 (83,000.00) 210,204.77
(307.889.11) - (307,889.11)
(180,684.34) (83,000.00) (97,684.34)
314,363.37 (121,348.00) 435,711.37
1,152,746.79 1,179,216.00 (26,469.21)

§ 1.467.110.16 _$ 1.057.868.00 $  409.242.16
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FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE

FORT SCOTT, KANSAS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Unencumbered Cash - Budget and Actual

Current Funds Unrestricted - Vocational Education Fund (Legal Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

REVENUES
Student Tuition and Fees
Tuition
Other Student Fees
Total Student Tuition and Fees

State

Operating Aid

State Grants
Total State

Other
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Academic Support
Institutional Support
Scholarships and Awards

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OTHER ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS)
Operating Transfers from (to) Other Funds

Transfers Qut to Other Funds

Excess of Revenues Over
{(Under) Expenditures

Unencumbered Cash-Beginning of Year

Unencumbered Cash-End of Year

SCHEDULE 3

Variance -
2014 2014 Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
$ 841,14824 $ 849937.00 $ (8,788.76)
326,940.59 363.254.00 (36,313.41)
1,168,088.83 1,213,191.00 (45,102.17)
1,508,091.00 1,508,091.00 -
318,782.00 300,000.00 18,782.00
1,826,873.00 1.808.,091.00 18,782.00
104,514.47 292.,650.00 (188,135.53)
3,099.476.30 3,313,932.00 (214,455.70)
2,975,144.38 3,230,335.00 255,190.62
2,975,144,38 3,230,335.00 255,190.62
(127.204.77) (83.000.00) (44.204.77)
(2.872.85) 597.00 (3,469.85)
2,872.85 11,592.00 (8,719.15)
$ - $ 12.189.00 _$§ (12.189.00)
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FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Unencumbered Cash - Budget and Actual
Current Funds Unrestricted - Adult Education Fund (Legal Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

REVENUES
Student Tuition and Fees
Other Student Fees
Other
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Instruction

OTHER ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS)
Operating Transfers from (to) Other Funds
Transfers In from Other Funds

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Unencumbered Cash-Beginning of Year

Unencumbered Cash-End of Year

SCHEDULE 4

Variance -
2014 2014 Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
$ 1.000.00 % (1,000.00)
- 17,756.00 (17.756.00)
- 18.756.00 (18,756.00)
18.560.49 18,756.00 195.51
18,559.71 - 18,559.71
(0.78) - (0.78)
0.78 - 0.78
$ - $ - $ -
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SCHEDULE 5
FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Unencumbered Cash - Budget and Actual
Current Funds Unrestricted - Truck Driver Training Fund (I.egal Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance -
2014 2014 Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Student Tuition and Fees
Tuition § 111,421.00 $ 154,773.00 $  (43,352.00)
Other Student Fees 193,689.00 310,485.00 (116,796.00)
Total Student Tuition and Fees 305,110.00 465,258.00 (160,148.00)
State
Other State Aid - - -
Special State Aid - 56.500.00 (56,500.00)
Total State - 56,500.00 (56.500.00)
Other 91.429.04 250,000.00 (158,570.96)
TOTAL REVENUES 396,539.04 771,758.00 (375,218.96)
EXPENDITURES
Operations and Maintenance
Instruction 685.868.52 1,087,182.00 401,313 .48
OTHER ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS)
Operating Transfers from (to) Other Funds
Transfers In from Other Funds 289,329.40 - 289.329.40
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures and
Other Additions (Deductions) (0.08) (315,424.00) 315,423.92
Unencumbered Cash-Beginning of Year 0.08 - 0.08
Unencumbered Cash-End of Year b (0.00) _$ (315.424.000 $  315.424.00
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SCHEDULE 6
FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE

FORT SCOTT, KANSAS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Unencumbered Cash - Budget and Actual
Restricted Funds - Capital Outlay Fund (Legal Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance -
2014 2014 Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Other
Miscellaneous $ - $ 102,619.00 § (102,619.00)
TOTAL REVENUES - 102,619.00 (102.619.00)
EXPENDITURES
Operation and Maintenance 260,709.04 310,871.00 50,161.96
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (260,709.04) (208,252.00) (52,457.04)
Unencumbered Cash-Beginning of Year 312,377.99 312,378.00 (0.01)
Unencumbered Cash-End of Year $ 2166895 § 104,126.00 $  (52.457.05)
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SCHEDULE 7
FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Unencumbered Cash - Budget and Actual
Current Funds Unrestricted - Auxiliary Enterprise Fund (Legal Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance -
2014 2014 Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Tuition and Fees
Student fees 30,496.00 §  100,000.00 $  (69,504.00)
Dormitory rents 570,704.67 600,000.00 (29,295.33)
Total Tuition and Fees 601,200.67 700,000.00 (98,799.33)
Other
Miscellaneous 27,994.75 10,000.00 17,994.75
Total Other 27,994.75 10,000.00 17,994.75
Sales and Services of Auxiliary Enterprises
Food service sales 537,331.28 600,000.00 (62,668.72)
Total Sales and Services of
Auxiliary Enterprises 537,331.28 600,000.00 (62,668.72)
TOTAL REVENUES 1,166,526.70 1,310,000.00 (161,468.05)
EXPENDITURES
Auxiliary Enterprise
Bookstore and Student Center - $ 110,000.00 $ 110,000.00
Dormitory 362,681.74 401,847.00 39,165.26
Food Service 536,149.20 600,000.00 63.,850.80
Total Auxiliary Enterprise 898.830.94 1,111,847.00 213,016.06
Retirement of Indebtedness 95,000.00 95.000.00 -
Interest on Indebtedness 103,152.17 103,153.00 0.83
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,096,983.11 1,310,000.00 213,016.89
OTHER ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS)
Operating Transfer from (to)
Other Funds - - -
Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other
Additions (Deductions) 69,543.59 - 51,548.84
Unencumbered Cash-Beginning of Year 615,176.10 612,733.00 2.443.10
Unencumbered Cash-End of Year 684.719.69 $§ 612.733.00 § 53.991.94
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SCHEDULE 8
FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE

FORT SCOTT, KANSAS
Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
All Agency Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
BALANCE BALANCE
JUNE 30, JUNE 30,
ACCOUNT NAME 2013 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2014
ACTIVITY FUND
Fee and User Charges
Student Activity Accounts 8.349.07 § 613,28535  § 590,970.20 30,664.22
Student Capital Project (23,839.06) 76,753.50 99,999.96 (47,085.52)
Guaranteed Student Loans 5,433.12 3,921,261.00 3,918,967.50 7,726.62
Sales Tax (4.14) 616.21 - 612.07
Cosmetology 1,649.93 1,115.84 - 2,765.77
PSU Cosmetology 7,119.10 371.93 - 7,491.03
Non Credit Programs 8,888.54 356.00 266.75 8,977.79
Special Registrar 86.015.61 18,521.4] 62,366.88 42,170.14
93.612.17 $ 463228124 $ 4.672.571.29 53.322.12
Gate Receipts
Sales accounts 20,966.37 $ 14,030.53  § 9.706.80 25.,290.10
20,966.37 § 14.030.53 % 9.706.80 25,290.10
School Projects Accounts
Miscellaneous Funds 38,15020 § 5,13757 8§ 3,206.94 40,080.83
Dental Hygiene - - - -
Booster/ Endownment Clearing 49.950.92 - (24,284.64) 74,235.56
Payroll Clearing - - - -
88.101.12 § 513757 % (21,077.70) 114,316.39
Student Organization Accounts
Nursing/Allied Health 3,25838 % 2,110.00 $ - 5,368.38
Clubs and Organizations 45,701.61 130,209.64 148,021.04 27,890.21
Clearing Account 1,921.27 - - 1,921.27
50.881.26 % 132319.64 § 148.021.04 35,179.86
TOTAL ACTIVITY FUND 253,560.92 $§ 4,783.76898 § 4.809221.43 228,108.47
Assets
Cash and Investments (124,685.64) $§ 4315198.52 § 4,430,974.87 (240,461.99)
Other Receivables 378,246.56 468,570.46 378.246.56 468,570.46
TOTAL ASSETS 233,56092 § 478376898 $§ 4.809.221.43 228,108.47
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 53,315,112 § 81,109.27 § 53,315.12 81,109.27
Deposits Held For Others 200,245.80 4.702,659.71 4,755,906.31 146,999.20
TOTAL LIABILITIES 253.560.92 8§ 4783,768.98 § 4.809221.43 228.108.47

- 36 -



IM‘MI

D06CFs  § O8BILT § I80CTO0T6 § Orc906d § ITO0fEce § (00D § LIOL6OSI § EIcoccIs! §

- - S6FFR016 S6'899°1% 1T05€°C6 (000 TO60LTST 85°0T9°¢F8’T

- - S6FFE0I6 $6'899°1¢ IT0EET0 (00°0) 0L 1ET 88079
00°6TF'S 08'81L°C Z6'ELT SFE6CLY - - STL9T¢8 (SP'8SeEe)
00'6CF S 08'81L°T T6CLT6 ST E6ELT - - ST'L9TS (St'gseiee)
g06ct's § 08'8ILT § TOSLTG § SHE6LLL $ - $ - § SI9Ts  § (Spgseer)  §
oo'6crs % 0881.T § L80CI0T6 § OFToUed § ICOSECE § - § LTO9L69ST § €ITOCCIST §
00°6TFS 08'81L°C L80T1°0T6 0¥ 250°69 IT0LETH - LT'9L696T £1'297°TiI8]
00'188°¢ OF'SLES 9T CC1 9LT - 10EETH - 06047161 £T90S ¥
(00°5SH) § (099¢KT) § 19°666'€69 § OVTNEY  § - $ - $ SIL9T¢  § 06'SSLL6E'L §

CC# Pung [¢Hpunyg F8-18# putt] 19# pung L1#pung €1# puny C1# pung TT# punyg

0D0HES APisSNIOM asudiouy ABJINO) uoneanpy HoHBONpg uoneInpy [BOUSD)
[elepa Aremny [enden) BUWAL(T o], npy [RUOTIEO0O A

6 A'TNAAHIS

¥10¢T “0g sung

uonmsu| AIRUILL] ~ UOUIS0J 12N JO o[npaysyg Furtiquion)

SVSNVM ‘LLOJS THO4

HYTTTOD ALINNWINOD LLODS 104

NOLLISOd 1IN UNV SHILTHEIVIT TV.LOL

NOLLISOd LN TV.LOL
PRIDLISIL Y
S[(epUadXaUoN - PIOTNSIY
192(T PRIR[OY JO J1oN 81088V [ende)) Ul paissau]
uonsod 1PN

SHLLIIEGVIT TV.LOL
SONIIqRIT JUSLINQUON] feIC],
JAOQE PIPATOUT UOIUOJ UMM $837]
algeirg sasea] [enden)
S3DIIQEI] W0, Suo]
SN[ IGRIT TUILINOUON,
SeLHIqel] JuaLm]) [BI0 ],
SO{ICETT ULS [ -3U0T JO UOTLIO] 11y
SIQUIQ 105 Apolsnyy Ul play susodag]
S20UISAY PITBSUAWIOT)
Jqedeg sunodsy
SaTIqer T Juenmy)
SALITTIHVT L
NOILISOd LIN ANV SHLLITIEVI]

S5LASSV TV10L

$198SY JUSLINDUON [210],
uoeIdaIdap pajeInIunase Jo 18U ‘slasse [ende)
S1988Y JUSLINIVO N
SIA8SY JUSLINY) [RIO],
IDUBMO[R JO 10U ‘SI]QBAIISY
stualeAInby yse) pue ysen)
$1988Y UL
SLASSY



|®Ml

900 § €00 $ O00LEF'S § <COCIEES § - § 008§ (00597 § 166L0F01 $
90'0 €00 - €0CICES - - 00°0 -
900 €070 - E0TICES - - 0070 -
- - 00 LEY'S - - 00°8E£TC (20°059) 16'6,07701
- - 00°LEr'S - - 00°8€TS {20059} 16°6L0°F01
00°0% 00°0% 00 LEFSE 00°0$ 000§ 00°8£T°5% 00594~ 16 6L040TS
CTi) €00 $ 00LEFS § €0TIEES § - § 008ETS § (T00%9) § I66LOVOL §
90°0 £0°0 00°LEF'S E0TIEES - 00'BET'S (20°059) 16'6L0' 101
- - £TI9F$9 00011 - TL8VS 8L 8.°0TE°06 08°0€E¢S1
90°0% £0°0% ETFTO09S-  £OTOGISE 0008 LLOLEELY-  08'0L606%  $60STISS-
pr# pung £c4# punyg {£# pun] 9T# pun,| LTH# PNy 9z# pung ST# pung vTH# pung
JueID) Yooy, eID) SIUBIL) ssed el AT 2P BUlUTell Qof  JUBID 47 eI 112d
aaneaoUU]  SUISINN WO paseqf wrio)

(panunuo)) ¢ ATNAAHDS

¥10T ‘0g 2ung
LOINITISU] AIBUALL] - TIORISO ] 1N JO A[Npayog Suiiquio)
SVSNY “LLODS LM0A
AYTTTIOD ALINIWINOD LLOJS 1304

SOd LAN ANV SHILITIEVI T TY.LOL

NOLLISOd L3N TVIOL
pajoinsamn
J[qepuadxauoN] - PSSy
PaIRIoY JO 12N ‘S1988Y jeHde) Ul pajssAll]
UOTIISOJ 19N

SHLLITIEVIT TV.LOL
S20I[IQBIT JUSLINIUON [10 ],
SA0QE PAPN[SU] UOIMOJ JUDLIN) §527]
Q[grAR $asey] eude)
S2MTIqEI] UL, Suo]
SIUIIGRL JUSLNOUON]
SSTIIGRTT JUALINT [BI0 ],
SOIHIGRIT LR [-SU0T] JO UOLLOJ JUdLIN,)
SIBLQ) 10 Apo1sny) ur praf] siisode(]
§20ULSQ Y paresuadwo)
quAR] SIUNOIDY
S2NI[IqR]T Jualm))
SALLTTIE V]
NOLLTSOd LAN ANV SHILI'TIEVIT

S1ASSY TVIOL

S19SSY TUALINIUON [210],

3931d5P PIB|WINIOR JO 19U “Sjasse [RHdE)
S1988 Y JUILINOUION]

81988y JUALINY) [EI10],

S0UBMO[TE JO 10U ‘SI[qBAISDY

SIURFBAINDT USB)) PUB yse))
$1988Y JUALINY)

SLASSY




(ponupuo)) ¢ A 1NATHIS

|@m“|

"985[[07) BY1 JO SPUNT AUE UT PSPTLIUL J0U SA0UDSqY PRIESTAdIn;) paniaoy Jo siSIsuod juaunsnlpe JyvD 210N

LO L8868l - § OCHLLSEPIFL § LPSOTSCC § STH69LLC §
881LT9LTOT  (00'80CSLT) OV #6STLOL - SO669°CLT
8T LLOEOTE (00°80S°LT) - - COBRICLT
OF P6STLO L - OF F6S°TLOL - -
6IT19°CL03 00B0SSLT  96'6L1GLCL Ly 801°3TT -
9L'6T09E0°L 00910°LE] 9€'6Z99E0°L - -
(09°085°6E5) - (090557655} - -
96'6L1°9L5L - S66L19LE L - -
£8°T86 95071 00°Z6% 8F1 09085 688 LV'80178CC -
09°05676ES - 09°05$76E¢ - -
0766691 - - 0T°666'971 -
00761 8+ 00°Z6F'8F1 - - -
£OOF6E 10T - - LT60T 18 -
L0663 9LE 8T - § 9CVLLSHOFL § LFSOIScc § SOGOYELC §
¢ VLI SO - 9 FLL RO P - -
9CFLLSHO T - 9CVLLRYOT] - -
A - - LFR01°8TC SO669€LT
HPOLTTIT - - 91" 0LE" 89T 00°ZECTO9E
§S0TF909°1 - g - § (66'19F°0FD) § (SETEYTO) §
SIVIOL SJURUWNSNIPY uerg spunj QALY [ puny]
dVvD pH RISy

F10T "f suny
UQMMISU] AFRWEL] - UOLIISOJ 10N JO 9[npeyns Suuiquor)
SYSNVY “LLOJS LHOA
ADATTOD ALINNWINOD LLODS 1804

NOILISOd LAN ANV SALLI'TIIVIT TV.LOL

NOILISOd LN TV.LOL
pajoL)samn
S](BPUAUXIUON] - PRIOLUSIY
192(] PaIRjoy JO 10N ‘s1088Y [B1Ide)) U pajsaau]
UOTHSO ] JON

SALLITIIVIT TV.LOL
SIGRET JUSLMOUON [RI0],
A0GE PIPOIUT TVOILO ] JI2UNY) 859
S|qeArd sasexT [ende))
SOUIIRLT UL [, Juo]
SAPIQRIT JUALINDUON
SOLIIGETT TNy [€10,],
SaIM[IqeL] TS T -3U0 ] JO UOTLIO TUALIN
81aY1() 40] Apoisty) ul ploy susodac]
SI0UDE( Y PALSUSAIEIO)
3qeAR SIUNOOOT
SOWIIQRIT Juamny)
SHLLITIEVIT
NOILLISOd IAN ONV SHIIITIIVIT

SLASSY TVLOL

S1388Y JUSLINIUON] [EI0 ]
UONEIOIdap PAJR[NNoOR JO 19U *s19sse jende)
S1988Y JUQLINOUON
§198SY JUAHIN) [BIOL
Q0UBMO[E JO 19U ‘S2]qBAI0Y
sjusjeAInbY [SE) PUR YSL))
S128SY JUaAIN7)
SLHSSV



Io.wul

- $ - § S6PF80I6 § S$68991S § IC0tLce § (000) § 2060LTTST 3C0T9SHsT  §

- - 6LOE1T1C8 66 LLETIE 6T°9TISLT 8L°0 8L°L0T 6l FARY T |

- - 91°80L°68 (r0'60.°097)  (80°96L778)  (8L°0) (OL"86E'TH) 91'STL 881

- - (L1'ZC1'861) - - - 00'€48°928’] OLLSS0ITS

- - (LTTET861) - - - - -

- - - - - - - OTLYE091°E

- - - - - - 00°€L8°928°1 00°01Z°056°T

- - £€°098°L5T h0'60L09T)  (BPSTITie)  (6F09S8T) (66990 TFLT) WL Zv L IFLE)
00°661°0E 09°0:8°8L F6'0£8°868 Y0'60L709Z o898 589 67 095°8 1 8ETFISL6T 000€S°018°L

- - P6'0£8°368 - - - - -
00'667°0€ 09°0.8'8L - - - - - 95°808°pT

- - - - - - - ESTI8L7EEL'T

- - - - - - - POPPTOrLT

- - - - - - - FT'RS67100°T

- - - - - - - LY'SSTETT

- - - - - - - 166y

- - - PO'60L°09T 75'898°¢89 6709581 SEPPLTSLET 9L 06V TLOT
00°66t°0€ 09°048°8L LTT69°9ST°] - POEPLTETE - 6¢ LLOFET] 0LT8€°690°¢

- - 99TICIES - - - - -

- - SLFE6'LT - FO'6TF 16 - LEHTS P01 £C7161°869
00°667°0€ 09°08°8L - - - - T 00°SPey

- $ - § 9%'e8€°L09 § " § 00¥IETT § } $ TETOSOTIT § LEOVTO9ET  §

O PUng L T# P V8-18# pund 19 punyg LE#pung £1# pung cl#pung 114 pung

ISTO Y APRESIIO M astadJang Ap[InQ uoleanpy woneonpy uonenpg [rIaTaN)
[esopag ATRT{IXNY 2ude) FuIALI(] Yonl], nnpy [EUOTIBOO A

01T H1NGIHDS

YI0T “0€ dun[ popuy Ieax [eosL 2yl Joy
UOTINISUT AIBWILL] - UOTISOJ 19N UI 898URYY) PuE ‘sosuadxy ‘Santaasy] Jo I[OPAYIS BUMIQUIO,)

SVSNVI

‘LLODS 1904

TIATTOD ALINOWIOD LLOOS LHOA

B0 A JO pud —- NOLLISOd TAN
Ieax jo sutuudeq -- NOLLISOd 1AN

NOILISOd LAN NI IS VAEONI

(sasuadx{) pue anuaAxy oY1)

(osuadxy) 2woouf FuneiadouoN BN
192 pajejal -- 81988y [ejide) Uo JSIU]

QUWIODU JUILLISIAUT
S0

suoreLdoddy Aunon
suoneudolddy areig

(sasuadx) sonuaaay Funessdouon

{asuadxz) swoou] Funeiad() 19N

sasuadxy suneIadQ) (@10
asLdIaUs ATRIIXNY
SpIeMY PUR sAlSIe[OYDS
SOUBURIUTEIA] PUR uolerady)
noddng peuonnITISUl
S0IAIAG JUIPTIG
Hoddng ormopeoy
201AI2G 21[qNg
UoTONISUJ
[BI2U0) pUB [RUOIRONPT]
sasuadxy Suneiad(
SASNHIXA
senuaasy duneadQ elo],
sesudiazuy Arejxny
Y0
SI0RLUO) PUE SIURID) 21B1S
S10BIILIO)) PUR SJUBID) JRIAPAY
820,] PUE UONIN ], JUPMS
sanusasy Junrizd(
SANNIAHY



|—¢|

900 200 § - t0TILES § - T - § 000 g - 3
90°0 £0°0 - FOEQT 69 - - 00°0 -
- - - (10 1s8°sD) - - - -
- - - (10°158°CT) - - - -
- - T0FPTSIT 88 LGLLF - 96 THIELE LT80E°E68 8COIVFPSE
. - - - - - - 8T OIFFrS'E
- - 10FFT°612 88°LEILY - 96" THOCLE LT80E°E68 -
- - 10FFCS1T  L89FEIE - 96° TP ELE LT R0EE6S 8TOIF PPSE
- - 11+99°TL LEOPETE - - - -
- - 06°615°01 - - - - - .
- - 00°096°¢T1 - - 96 TP ELE LTR0E° €68 8T0IVFPSE
- $ - $ - - - $ - $ - 5§ - $
£E# pung £E# pung 1 €% punyg gT# pung LT#pung 97 pung ST# pung ve# pun
JLBIO U39 ], nein SHIBIN ssed eIy AT QMU Sururel] gof weln J9H man fad
aalresout]  Suisinn YOIy pesey wWo)

(penunuo))) o1 ATNAAHIS

uoUMNSUT ATEUIEL] - UONISO] JaN W SaEUBl) PUB ‘SasuadXy ‘Sanuaaay Jo Ampaysg Fumnquor)

P10T “0F SUN[ papus Je2 & JeIsky 31 1o,

SVSNVM "LLODS LYOd
ADITTIOD ALINNIWINOD .LLODS 104

1A Jo pud - NOLLISOJ 1AN
TeaX Jo Smuursag - NOLLISOd LAN

NOILLISOd LIN NI ASVHMONI

932(]07) SY} 4G PAOURUIFHI SPUOY JUSWMOPUY
(sosuadx ) pue snuaATy Y0

(esuadxq) stwoau] dupsiodouoN 19N
399p PRIl -- S19SSY [BIdR)) UO IS
QWU JUIUNSIAU]
SYID
suonendorddy Aunod
suoneLdoiddy ajeg
(sosuadixy) senuoAay Juneredouon

(esuadxyy) owody uneiad() 1PN

sasuadxy Sueiad(y B10],
asudLug ArI[xny
spiemy pue sdisiejoyossg
QVURUAUTEN Pue uonelad()
Hoddng [guotmnsuy
S3DIAIDG USPNIG
uoddng onuapesy
2DIALDS 2NN
UoT)onnsu|
JelsUaL) puw [BUOHEONPT]
sosuadxy Sunesad()
SHSNHIXH
SINULASY SuneRd() [B10],
gasudIdIIg AIRT| XY
g1
S]ORHUO) pUR SJURID) Q18IS
S10BJIL0)) PUE SJURIC) [BIAP3]
£30.] PUR UONIR ] UIpNIS
sonupagy suneradg
SANNIATA



- N¢ -
"Teak 311 JO PUD Ay JO Sk [ENId0R 3Y} ppe 0} putl 1eak ayr Jo uuurdag Y] Jo se $a0uasqe Pajesuadued panssoe 340wl 01 sjuatnsnipe Jo 181su0o spousnipy gV 910N

BRLLTOLTOT § TO00SSLDS v v6sTL0L § - § S96e0ELT § 422 A JO PUS -- NOLLISOd 1UN
618757386 (00°88L°9ST}  07'188°9¢59 - [L1Z9%bT 83 X JO SunmIgag -- NOLLISOd 1IN
69°EFLE6T (DO°0ZLGLL)  0T'LOL'SES - re8L0GT NOILISOd LAN NI 3SYHIDNT

- - - - 95910 Y1 AQ PAIDUBULI SPUOY JUSUMOPU
(Sesuadxi) pue anUIADY DY)

8FOTT'819°9 - (S 19T 1Z1) - - (estradxy) aweou] Furresadotuon] 19N
(TCIL6IE) - (SF'T91°1ZT) - - 195D P2JBIaI -- $1988 Y [RUdR") 10 IS3Ia)u|
- - - - - SWODU] TUANSIAU]
- - - - - S0
0T'LPE0ST'E - - - - suopepdolddy £juno)
00°€80°LLL'E - - - - suopeudoaddy oy
(sasmadxy) sonuaasy Sunpiodouon
6L cieFee ) (O00CLBID  S9'R98°9¢0 - YOBL06L (asuadxg) awoon] Surressd() 19N
6L°605°L98°8T  00°0ZLBil  (£9°898°059) - LOTYBTLS'I sesuadxy Suyesadp M0,
YLLS6656 - 0892119 - - 9SLIdIRUY AIRI[IXNY
P1'886°8L9°C - - - - SpIEMY pur SAI SB[y
TTEFOFO0°L - (62°8£8°8£9) - - 2OURUNUIEY Pue uomeId()
ST ERRTFOL - (65°09£°LOT) - - yoddng [euopmpsuy
§CTETTLOT - 1EF6T0E - - SA0IAIAE USRS
64°59T'8T¢ - TEOT0°C01 - - Hoddng oluapeoy
w66’y - - - - 201AI2G 2O
81°LT9'9TT'6 00°0zL'8ET  (0T10T°L0D) - LOTHETLS T UOTOTLISU]
[BJ2USD) PUY [EUOHERINDT
sasuadxy Juneiadp
SASNHIXH
00 LEVEFSTI - - - 19026 T09°] sonuaamy funerado) (g0}
9zie e - - - - SosLIcloUY ARI[IXNY
81°6TL°L89°] - - - 19°885°199 PO
06'619°91 - - - - SOBIUO.) PUB SIUBICY ATRIS
11'896°166'S - - - 00°ZEE'0FE SIOBIIUO.) PUR SIUBID) JRISPa,]
SIL0seZEy § - 5§ - . s - $ $39,] PUE UOYIN ], JUSPMIS
sanuaAdy FuneId()
SANNIATA
STYLOL spuawsulpy el Spun AIIATDY T /egpung

dVv¥D P RIS

¥10T “0g dunf papuy Jea & [e0os1 3y 10,1
UOHMINSU] Aeillg - UOHISO JaN Ul $aFURYD) PUR *Sasuadxg ‘sanuaay Jo ajnpayos Fuiuquon)
SYSNVM ‘LLODS LHOA
ADATIOD ALINNWINOD LLOOS LAO4
(panunuo)) 01 ATNATHIS



FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS

FEDERAL COMPLIANCE SECTION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014



SCHEDULE 11
FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Federal Grantor Federal Pass Through
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Grantor's
Program Title Number Number Revenue Expenditures
U.S. Department of Labor
Direct Program
Workforce Investment Act Grant (2) 17.270 N/A 373,642.96 373.642.96
U.8S. Department of Education
Direct Programs
Federal Supplemental Education
Opportunity Grant Program 84.007 N/A 30,499.00 30,499.00
Federal Workstudy Program 84.033 N/A 78,870.60 78,870.60
Federal Pell Grant Program
Grants 84.063 N/A 3.544,410.28 3,544,410.28
Administration 84.063 N/A 4,945.00 4,945.00
HEP Grant 84.141A N/A 457,771.39 457,771.39
CAMP Grant 84.149A N/A 435,536.88 435,536.88
Federal Direct Student Loan Program  (3)  84.268 N/A 3,921,261.00 3,921,261.00
Passed Through the State of Kansas
Department of Education
Migrant Education (Title I) Program 84.011 O 940,332.00 940,332.00
Vocational Education Program 84.048 (n 125.960.00 125.,960.00
Totals U.S. Department of Education 9,539,586.15 9,539.586.15

Total Federal Awards

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
(1) The number of the pass through grantor is not available.
(2) The Awardee for this grant is the Fort Scott Community College Endowment Association. The College

administers this grant, receives the grant funds, and pays the grant expenditures.
(3) These amounts are Single Parent, Stafford, Unsubsidised Stafford, and Plus Loans to students and parents

of students at the College.

_$ 9.913.229.11

$ 9.913.229.11

Federal Awards recorded as Revenue
Federal Family Education Loan Program
Total Federal Awards

$5,991,968.11
3.921,261.00
$9.913.229.11

This schedule is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, which is the same basis of accounting that
the basic financial statements were prepared.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Trustees
Fort Scott Community College
Fort Scott, Kansas 66701

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Fort Scott Community College, Fort Scott, Kansas (College) compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of the College’s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2014. The College’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the College’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the College’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major

federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the College’s
compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the College’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

@Q&D/ %““d, Mu\
DIEHL, BANWART, BOLTON, CPAs PA

March 5, 2015
Fort Scott, Kansas

- 45 .



Diehl
Banwart
Bolton

Certified Public Accountants PA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INFERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
Fort Scott Community College
Fort Scott, Kansas 66701

We have audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Fort Scott
Community College, Fort Scott, Kansas, as of the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise Fort Scott Community College’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 5, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the College's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
College’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the College’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A mafterial weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses.
We identified one deficiency in internal control (2014-001) over financial reporting that we consider to
be material weaknesses, as defined above. We identified one deficiency in internal control over
financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we
consider to be a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting (2014-002). A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statement is free of
malterial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

College’s Response to Findings
The College's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the Corrective Action
Plan. We did not audit the College's response and accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

D@"”‘bf M/ &'QJ;’"
DIEHL, BANWART, BOLTON, CPAs PA

March 5, 2015
Fort Scott, Kansas
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SCHEDULE 12
FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements prepared in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

. One material weakness and one significant deficiency disclosed during the audit of the
financial statements are reported in the “Independent Auditors Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards™.

. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the College were
disclosed during the audit.

. There were no significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs
disclosed during the audit.

. 'The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the College
expresses an unqualified opinion on all major federal programs.

. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB
Circular A-133 are reported in this Schedule.

. The programs tested as major programs included:

CFDA # NAME OF PROGRAM

17.270 Workforce Core Investment Act
84.007 Federal SEOG Program

84.011 Migrant Education (Title I} Program
84.033 Federal Workstudy Program

84.063 Federal Pell Grant Program

84.141A HEP Grant Program

84.149A CAMP Grant Program

84.268 Federal Direct Student Loan Program

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

9. The College was not determined to be a low-risk auditee.
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SCHEDULE 12
(Continued)

FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

Material Weakness
2014-001 Maintenance of Accounting Records

Condition: As of July 1, 2013, the Fort Scoit Community College Endowment Association
(Association) — a component unit of the College - switched to new accounting software.
However, the new software was not set up and available for use until the fall of 2014.
Accordingly, the management and the board of directors were unable to provide proper
oversight without adequate accounting records.

Criteria: Financial information should be provided to management and the board of directors
to provide proper oversight.

Cause: It took management much longer than anticipated to convert the new accounting
software.

Effect: The Association went over 18 months without adequate accounting records for
management and the board of directors.

Recommendation: None needed. The new software is now working. Management receives
monthly updates of accounting information of the Association.

Response: The College and the Association agree with the finding. A corrective action plan
has been adopted by the College.

Significant Deficiency
2014-002 Drafting Financial Statements

Condition: As auditors, we provide significant assistance with adjusting entries, as well as
determining which disclosures are required under generally accepted accounting standards and
the regulatory basis of accounting.

Criteria: Internal controls should be in place that provide a reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are appropriate in form and contain the required disclosures.

Cause: Relying upon the independent auditors is a significant deficiency in internal controls as
they can not be considered part of the College’s internal control.

Effect: The College relies on independent anditors to determine the financial statements are in
the correct form and include the proper disclosures.

Recommendation: None

Response: The College agrees with the finding. The College’s response is in the attached
Corrective Action Plan.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

None Reported.
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SCHEDULE 13

FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FORT SCOTT, KANSAS

Schedule of Resolution of Prior Year’s Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

No audit findings relative to the federal award programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.
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FORT SCOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
June 30, 2014 Financial Statements
Corrective Action Plan

Audit Finding 2014-001

Due to the difficulties in the implementation of new accounting software for the Fort
Scott Community College Endowment Association, management of both the College and
the Association went almost 18 months without adequate accounting information. The
accounting software is now working and providing information in a timely manner.
However, in order to ensure that accounting information is kept up to date and timely,
monthly reports are required to be made by the Director of Development at the
Association to the College’s Dean of Finance.

Audit Finding 2014-002

Fort Scott Community College has always relied upon its auditors to provide significant
assistance with adjusting entries and with determining which disclosures were required
under generally accepted accounting principles and the regulatory basis of accounting,
While Fort Scott Community College understands that this is a significant deficiency in
our internal controls, we believe it is the most cost effective manner for us to produce our
financial statements. Our accounting staff concentrate on providing the reports needed
for management purposes and preparing the required reports for the Kansas Department
of Education. We believe it would be inefficient and cost prohibitive for our staff to
altempt to stay current on all the requirements of GAAP and the regulatory basis of
accounting, We do not plan on making any changes at this time. However, we will
monitor this situation and periodically determine if it is cost effective for us to perform
these functions.
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